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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Loudoun Hall is located 2/5 mile north of Kentucky Highway 956 near the small
~community of Austerlitz. Characterized by its- undulating landscape, the surrounding
area is noted for its fertility, and since its initial erection the house has been

the residence for a productive farm.

The first phase erected was a one-story, five-bay section of brick, built ca. 1812
(see photo 2). Facing south and originally consisting of four rooms, this portion's
windows are sash with nine-over-nine panes. There are six doors (three on north
and south each) which have three-pane transoms above, and all openings are treated
with beaded moldings. A single garret window (now filled) is on the east wall where
an exterior chimney graduates, as do all others, to rather modest dimensions.

In 1850, alterations occurred that involved the dismantling of one room, the addition

of full-length porches on north and south, and an elevation of the roof. At this time,

a two-story, five-bay Greek Revival block was attached to the west, transforming the
brick section into an ell. A pedimented colossal portico envelops the central three bays
of the main facade (see photo 1), and the windows are sash with six-over-six panes.
This block is of frame construction and has an interior chimney on the north and south.
The portico's four Doric columns are of brlck coated w1th plaster and there are, in
addition, two  clapboarded pilasters, - = - 0 L 0w

The centered entrance is enhanced by a frontispiece with a transom, dentils, pilasters,
and attenuated columns (see photo 3), and the portico's ceiling is enlivened with coffers
(see photo 4). A plain entablature adorns the main facade, and the frame block rests
on a stone foundation.

The original layout of the 1850 section featured two large rooms with a central hall on
both floors. During a 1909 remodeling, one bedroom on the second floor was diminished
in size, allowing space for the installation of a bathroom. During the same

remodeling, a closed stairway leading from the south parlor to a room above was
removed, and an L-shaped porch serving both sections was enclosed,with a portion being
transformed into a pantry. ‘ -

The stairway in the central hall has decorative stringers and a simple newel and balusters
of cherry (see photo 6), Both parlors have a modest Greek Rev1va.1 mantel (see photo 7),

e,
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Kl SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC ~ —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC ~ ._COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
. —1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAW
—1500-1599 X AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS —LITERATURE
—1600-1699 X ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY
—1700-1799 —ART —ENGINEERING —Music
51800-1899. —COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT
—_INVENTION

—RELIGION

—SCIENCE

—SCULPTURE
—SOCIALZHUMANITARIAN
—THEATER
—TRANSPORTATION
—OTHER {SPECIFY)

Greek Revival-1850
SPECIFIC DATES 2L €CK o i ek 1812

BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

with a major Greek Revival block added in 1850.
by Sylvester Girimes and the addition by his son, John.
nent farmers and producers of short-horned cattle.
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Loudoun Hall, located in the southern portion of Bourbon County, dates to 1812

The original house was constructed
Both Grimes were promi-
Loudoun Hall, which is an

interesting combination of the Federal and Greek Revival styles, remains in the
Grimes family at the present time.

Fortunately, the Federal portion, with its chair-railing and decoratively incised mantels,

has been left much as it was built.

One room of this section was dismantled, porches

have been added, and the roof has been elevated, but the origiml character manages
to prevail. The 1850 Greek Revival block is a well preserved example of this style's

rural form--decorative detail is minimal,
through use of a classic order.
and alterations occurring then were not detrimental.

have been almost negligible;

but a sense of the monumental is achieved

Since the turn-of-the-century remodeling, changes

In short, Loudoun Hall preserves the flavor of a substantial farmhouse in an
acknowledged leading agricultural region.

In 1798 Nicholas Grimes and his wife and seven children left their home in Loudoun

County, Virginia, and moved to Kentucky.
died of appendicitis, but the family continued their trip.

In the middle of the journey Nicholas
When the family reached

their land in Bourbon County, they built a two-story log house (which survived until

1925 when it was destroyed by fire).

Shortly afterwards, Sylvester, a son of

Nicholas, constructed a four-room brick house in the Federal style, near the log
house. In 1850, Sylvester's son, John, added the five-bay, two-story frame Greek
Revival block to the west, making the brick section an ell.

Bourbon County, established in 1785, is located in' the Bluegrass region of the state

and is composed of fertile soil based on limestone.

Because of the rich land, the

lush grass, and the many streams which flow through the county, it was an ideal

place for farming and raising livestock.
producers of livestock, specializing in short-horned cattle.

The Grimes family were farmers and
They originally owned

750 acres, 350 acres of which are still owned and farmed by the descendants

of the Grimes Family.
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and there are high baseboards, two-panelled doors, and shouldered architraves around
doors and windows in the frame section (see photos 5 and 8).

Mantels in the earlier brick portion are Federal and are treated with incised work
(see photo 9). Also retained here are original baseboards, wooden ceiling cornices,
reeded door and window reveals, and six-panelled doors.

Much of the ash flooring in both sections has survived, and among the most fascinating
of all original items is the wallpaper in the central hall (see photo 6). Executed

in the "trompe 1’ oeil" fashion, its design consists of marbelized Ionic columns set
among marbelized sections bordered by typically Greek '"moldings.!'" The "columns"
support a denticulated 'frieze' that continues around the entire hall (see photo 5).

Arranged in a row behind the house are seven outbuildings erected in 1909. The

L & NRailway secured a right-of-way through the farm in 1883 and their tracks

extend from the front to the back of the property, running within 150 feet behind

the house. Also located near Loudoun Hall is a family cemetery where many members
of the Grimes family, continuous occupants of the house, are buried.
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Page 2, Paragraph 4, Line 1:
This sentence shold be corrected to read;

Arranged in a row behind the house are five outbuildings erected in 1909.
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Verbal Boundary Description

The nominated acreage includes the main residence, five outbuildings and the
family cemetery. The driveway in front of the main residence serves as the
southern boundary, and a line running west of the Louisville and Nashville
Railroad tracks serves as the eastern boundary - the railroad tracks not being
part of the nominated property.
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Map 2. The Grimes house
is circled in. red.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Loudoun Hall is located 2/5 mile north of Kentucky Highway 956 near the small
~community of Austerlitz. Characterized by its- undulating landscape, the surrounding
area is noted for its fertility, and since its initial erection the house has been

the residence for a productive farm.

The first phase erected was a one-story, five-bay section of brick, built ca. 1812
(see photo 2). Facing south and originally consisting of four rooms, this portion's
windows are sash with nine-over-nine panes. There are six doors (three on north
and south each) which have three-pane transoms above, and all openings are treated
with beaded moldings. A single garret window (now filled) is on the east wall where
an exterior chimney graduates, as do all others, to rather modest dimensions.

In 1850, alterations occurred that involved the dismantling of one room, the addition

of full-length porches on north and south, and an elevation of the roof. At this time,

a two-story, five-bay Greek Revival block was attached to the west, transforming the
brick section into an ell. A pedimented colossal portico envelops the central three bays
of the main facade (see photo 1), and the windows are sash with six-over-six panes.
This block is of frame construction and has an interior chimney on the north and south.
The portico's four Doric columns are of brlck coated w1th plaster and there are, in
addition, two  clapboarded pilasters, - = - 0 L 0w

The centered entrance is enhanced by a frontispiece with a transom, dentils, pilasters,
and attenuated columns (see photo 3), and the portico's ceiling is enlivened with coffers
(see photo 4). A plain entablature adorns the main facade, and the frame block rests
on a stone foundation.

The original layout of the 1850 section featured two large rooms with a central hall on
both floors. During a 1909 remodeling, one bedroom on the second floor was diminished
in size, allowing space for the installation of a bathroom. During the same

remodeling, a closed stairway leading from the south parlor to a room above was
removed, and an L-shaped porch serving both sections was enclosed,with a portion being
transformed into a pantry. ‘ -

The stairway in the central hall has decorative stringers and a simple newel and balusters
of cherry (see photo 6), Both parlors have a modest Greek Rev1va.1 mantel (see photo 7),
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with a major Greek Revival block added in 1850.
by Sylvester Girimes and the addition by his son, John.
nent farmers and producers of short-horned cattle.
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Loudoun Hall, located in the southern portion of Bourbon County, dates to 1812

The original house was constructed
Both Grimes were promi-
Loudoun Hall, which is an

interesting combination of the Federal and Greek Revival styles, remains in the
Grimes family at the present time.

Fortunately, the Federal portion, with its chair-railing and decoratively incised mantels,

has been left much as it was built.

One room of this section was dismantled, porches

have been added, and the roof has been elevated, but the origiml character manages
to prevail. The 1850 Greek Revival block is a well preserved example of this style's

rural form--decorative detail is minimal,
through use of a classic order.
and alterations occurring then were not detrimental.

have been almost negligible;

but a sense of the monumental is achieved

Since the turn-of-the-century remodeling, changes

In short, Loudoun Hall preserves the flavor of a substantial farmhouse in an
acknowledged leading agricultural region.

In 1798 Nicholas Grimes and his wife and seven children left their home in Loudoun

County, Virginia, and moved to Kentucky.
died of appendicitis, but the family continued their trip.

In the middle of the journey Nicholas
When the family reached

their land in Bourbon County, they built a two-story log house (which survived until

1925 when it was destroyed by fire).

Shortly afterwards, Sylvester, a son of

Nicholas, constructed a four-room brick house in the Federal style, near the log
house. In 1850, Sylvester's son, John, added the five-bay, two-story frame Greek
Revival block to the west, making the brick section an ell.

Bourbon County, established in 1785, is located in' the Bluegrass region of the state

and is composed of fertile soil based on limestone.

Because of the rich land, the

lush grass, and the many streams which flow through the county, it was an ideal

place for farming and raising livestock.
producers of livestock, specializing in short-horned cattle.

The Grimes family were farmers and
They originally owned

750 acres, 350 acres of which are still owned and farmed by the descendants

of the Grimes Family.
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and there are high baseboards, two-panelled doors, and shouldered architraves around
doors and windows in the frame section (see photos 5 and 8).

Mantels in the earlier brick portion are Federal and are treated with incised work
(see photo 9). Also retained here are original baseboards, wooden ceiling cornices,
reeded door and window reveals, and six-panelled doors.

Much of the ash flooring in both sections has survived, and among the most fascinating
of all original items is the wallpaper in the central hall (see photo 6). Executed

in the "trompe 1’ oeil" fashion, its design consists of marbelized Ionic columns set
among marbelized sections bordered by typically Greek '"moldings.!'" The "columns"
support a denticulated 'frieze' that continues around the entire hall (see photo 5).

Arranged in a row behind the house are seven outbuildings erected in 1909. The

L & NRailway secured a right-of-way through the farm in 1883 and their tracks

extend from the front to the back of the property, running within 150 feet behind

the house. Also located near Loudoun Hall is a family cemetery where many members
of the Grimes family, continuous occupants of the house, are buried.
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Page 2, Paragraph 4, Line 1:
This sentence shold be corrected to read;

Arranged in a row behind the house are five outbuildings erected in 1909.
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Verbal Boundary Description

The nominated acreage includes the main residence, five outbuildings and the
family cemetery. The driveway in front of the main residence serves as the
southern boundary, and a line running west of the Louisville and Nashville
Railroad tracks serves as the eastern boundary - the railroad tracks not being
part of the nominated property.
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Loudoun Hall
Paris )
Bourbon County AUG 2 1976
Kentucky o

Atlas of Bourbon, Clark, Fayefte,
Jessamine and Woodford Counties,
Kentucky. Philadelphia: D. B.
Beers and J. Lanagan, 1877,

Map 2. The Grimes house
is circled in. red.

OCT 311977
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LOUDOUN HALL
BOURBON COUNTY, KY.
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Daniel Kidd

Sketch Map
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Map 3, First-floor plan,



